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1.  Question:  Referencing Category B, Section 7.4.k.1, Computer Security Tools, Anti-Spyware Software, page 97

k. Centrally managed Enterprise-based version

1. 25 client seats
Please confirm that Government wants 25 client licenses included in the base mandatory product.

Answer:  That is correct.

2.  Question:  Referencing Category B, Section 7.5.g, Computer Security Tools, Server Level Intrusion Protection and Detection Software, page 98
g. 25 server license

Please confirm that Government wants 25 server licenses included in the base mandatory product.  

Answer: That is correct.
3.  Question:  Referencing Category B, Section 7.6.i., Computer Security Tools, Vulnerability Assessment Software, page 98

i. 2500 seats

Please confirm that Government wants 2500 licenses (for client seats) included in the base mandatory product.  

Answer: That is correct.
4.  Question:  Referencing Category B, Section 7.7.f.5, Computer Security Tools, Enterprise-Wide Two Factor Authentication Manager Software, page 99

5. 30,000 users

Please confirm that Government wants 30,000 client licenses included in the base mandatory product.  

Answer: That is correct.

5.  Question:  Referencing Response ID #134 (published on 3/6/06), Questions #11 & 26 (published on 7/3/06) and Question #9 (published on 7/13/2006) --  

 

From the above referenced responses to offeror questions, this offeror understands that items from non-Trade Act compliant countries may be proposed but must also be noted as such in the offeror's Certifications and Representations.  Yet the solicitation continues to include Clause 52.225-5 "Trade Agreements (January 2006)" in the Contract Terms and Conditions listing, which invokes coverage by World Trade Organization Government Procurement Agreement (WTO GPA).  Evaluation instructions in FAR 25.502(b)1 state that for acquisitions covered by the WTO GPA, the evaluator must "consider only offers of U.S.-made or designated country end products, unless no offers of such end products were received".

 

This brings up a question regarding the evaluation of proposals. Offeror 1 and Offeror 2 submit fully compliant technical proposals for the same Class. Offeror 1's proposal consists entirely of TAA-compliant products.  Offeror 2’s proposal includes products that are non-TAA compliant.  Will Offeror 2's proposal still be considered eligible for award?  Please confirm this offeror's understanding based on the FAR instructions included above, that for each Class, if the Government receives a fully TAA-compliant proposal, then any other proposals received for that Class that includes non-TAA compliant products will not be eligible for award.
Answer: Decisions as to whether to purchase a TAA vs. non-TAA compliant product will be made by an agency issuing a delivery order per the cited clause.  This has no effect on proposal evaluations which do not include an actual purchase.

6.  Question:  In finishing our response to NASA SWEP IV NNG06123202R we have a question regarding the enormous pricing volume.  Our list of products unpriced and with pricing is about 250,000 line items. It appears that printing the entire document would violate some environmental standards if the same database can be presented on a CD.

Can the provided list of products be a CD submittal rather than 4 hardcopies? Please advise. 
Answer: The Available Components may be provided in paper form as a single Price Proposal copy and a single unpriced Price Proposal copy.  The rest of the Pricing exhibit must be provided as 4 separate copies plus one unpriced price proposal copy.

7.  Question:  In question 4 of Set 5 of the Q&A, the Government responded that "The
updated files were not initially placed on the website with the amendment.
They are now available for download. ", however these are the same files that
were posted in Amendment 2.  Are these the correct files?

Answer: The correct versions are available on the website.
8.  Question: In Question 17 of Set 5 of the Q&A, instead of broadening the
specification to allow for Unix 95 or Unix 98 or Unix 03. However the
Government did not modify the document in all locations to reflect this
change.  Please clarify.

Answer: In Sections A.3 and A.4. several references to TAB 2 include the phrase UNIX 98 which should read simply UNIX.  This will be updated.

9.  Question:  In Question 17 of Set 5 of the Q&A, instead of broadening the
specification to allow for Unix 95 or Unix 98 or Unix 03.  The Government
responded that "The UNIX requirement will be changed to a minimum mandatory
of UNIX 95 in Amendment 4". By making the Unix 95 a minimum mandatory
requirement the Government effectively eliminated any manufacturer who may
have based their Unix implementation on a "current version".  Unix 95 is an
approximately 12 year old standard , which limits the breadth and scope of
potential Unix vendors for the SEWP IV purchasing community, as well as
limits the technical viability of products adhering to this standard. Unix
95 certification does IMPLY Unix 98 or Unix 03 certifications, as each later
standard includes the requirements that made up the previous standard .
Consequently, by reverting to Unix 95 Certification and compliance, the SEWP
Bowl is inadvertently limiting choices and penalizing vendors who are
staying current with the latest Unix Branding Certification requirements.
One of these manufacturer who would be eliminated has been a leader in the
Unix workstation environment for the beginning.  We can not truly believe
that IT IS the Government's intent to eliminate these manufacturers and thus
restrict competition.  We therefore request that the Government revised all
minimum mandatory requirements in Class A to read" Unix 95, Unix 98 or Unix
03 branded with delivery of a copy of the Open Group branding certificate
provided with the proposal, or Linux Certified including the Linux Standard
Base (LSB) Runtime Environment Version 1.3 certified with a copy of the LSB
Conformance Statement provided with the proposal.²

Answer: UNIX 95 is the minimum standard. More recent standards may be substituted and in fact are desirable.

10.  Question:  In Question number 18 & 36 of Set 5 of the Q&A, the Government refers to
a "... the upcoming amendment".  When will the Amendment be released?

Based on the potential impact of the responses to these questions, we request
a 2 week extension on the bid submission date. 

Answer: All questions referring to amendments in Q and A Set 5 were included in amendment 4.

11.  Question:  Referencing Attachment A, Section 3.3.2.a.1. Operating System:  In the SEWP IV solicitation the requirement includes minimum mandatory compliance of UNIX 98 standard with the opportunity for achieving a desirable with compliance with the UNIX 03 standard. 

In order to provide the equivalent way of expressing minimum and desirable with respect to the Linux LSB certifications, this Offeror proposes that the requirements be updated to include Linux LSB 1.3 certification for minimum mandatory compliance and Linux LSB 3.0 certification as an equivalent desirable.
Answer: No change is needed to the specifications.  If a proposal includes a more recent version of the LSB certification, the certification requirement should be noted as being met in the MM (Minimum Mandatory) exhibit and as exceeding the minimum in the EM (Exceeding the Minimum) exhibit.

12.  Question:  Referencing Section A.3.14 General Benchmarking Instructions:  Relative to the Class 2 NASA Sybase land_small and land_large benchmark files:

The individuals attempting to run the NASA Sybase benchmark are having trouble loading the land_small and land_large benchmark files. From the description in the Readme benchmark file, there are four “flat” files (gran_small, land_small, gran_large, and land_large) of data. In looking at the files, the gran files are all characters and readable via a text editor. The land files have some SYBCHAR (character) columns, SYBINT4 (integer) and SYBREAL (floating point) columns. The character columns are readable with a text editor but the integer and real data does not look like numbers because the text editor tries to read them as characters when in fact they must be binary integer and floating point numbers instead of character numbers representing integer and real values.

The individuals have been successful in loading the gran files into the Sybase database using the BCP procedures in the benchmark instructions. However, when they use the BCP procedures in the benchmark instructions to load the land files into the Sybase database an error without an error code is returned and the file is not loaded into the database. The individuals have been working with Sybase technical support but have still been unable to load the files.

What BCP/Sybase options were used to BCP the data records from the Sybase database to the flat files? 
What BCP/Sybase options should be used with BCP to load the files?

Is it possible that retrieving the files with a browser from the NASA SEWP IV web site instead retrieving the files from an FTP site with FTP could be causing a data corruption/conversion problem with the files? 

Can NASA provide some suggestions/guidance in resolving the database load problem?

Can NASA provide a listing of the first 10 and last 10 records of all four files? This could help to ensure that if we are finally able to load the data into the database we have done so correctly.
Answer:  An alternative version of the Class 2 “land” database files have been created using Sybase bcp with the –C options as part of Amendment 5.  These new files will be located on the RFP site (www.sewp.nasa.gov/sewpiv) as “character format files”.  These alternative files should resolve all issues noted above.  
13.  Question:  Amendment 4 to the solicitation changed the Section 3.3.2, Operating System to UNIX 95.  Please confirm that this is the minimum and that a proposal offering UNIX 98 or 03 as the minimum will not be considered nonresponsive.
Answer: UNIX 95 is a minimum mandatory.  As stated in the RFP, more recent versions are desirable and therefore either UNIX 95 or a more recent version is acceptable.

14.  Question:  Will there be any subs to the Primes for SDVOSB ?  as we are HP/COMPAQ Certified as dealer and agent for them  and could furnish to a Prime off the SEWP Schedule, if needed.

Answer: Decisions as to how offeror may team with other companies is a business decision left to the offerors.
15.  Question:  In response to Question 9 in Set 5 of the SEWP Q&A, dated 13 July 2006, the Government provided the following answer: 

"Answer:  The RFP does not require TAA compliance. Proposers must indicate any items that are not TAA compliant in Section V.  OFFEROR REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS--COMMERCIAL ITEMS (52.212-3) (MAR 2005)--ALTERNATE I (APR 2002) AND ALTERNATE II (OCT 2000). Note, however, that prior to purchasing products from non-TAA compliant countries from a SEWP contract, the Government will need to follow the appropriate FAR requirements."

Please clarify the Government's intent by responding to the following specific questions: 

Has the Government determined that the value of this acquisition is equal to or exceeds $193,000 and is the World Trade Organization Government Procurement Agreement applies? 

Answer: Application of the TAA clause is performed on a per order basis.

If the Government has determined that the WTO GPA threshold applies, will the Government evaluate offers in accordance with FAR 25.502(b)(1) and example
1 of 25.504-2 and consider only offers of U.S.-made or designated country end products, unless no offers of such end products were received?  

Answer: TAA compliance will be done on a per order basis and not at the contract level.


If the answer to both 1 and 2 is not "yes", what is the value of this acquisition for the purpose of BAA/TAA threshold determination and how will the Government evaluate offers containing foreign products?

Answer:  TAA compliance will be done on a per order basis and not at the contract level.

16.  Question:  Referencing Section 9.2.b HDTV Upconverter:
We have found a product that matches the input and output connectivity, but does not meet the input and output of 480i and 480p requirement. Would the following be acceptable?

Input: 486i, 720p, 1080i

Outputs: 486i, 720p, 1080i

Answer: Providing a product with a higher resolution (eg. 486i vs. 480i) would constitute Exceeding the Minimum.  In that case, indicate that the minimum mandatory was met in the MM exhibit and that it was exceeded in the EM exhibit.
 17.  Question:  Referencing Section 9.5. Virtual Environment Devices:
b Flat, large-scale stereoscopic and monoscopic visualization such as the Fakespace PowerWall:
1.        Two channel system – soft screen 6 feet (height) X 14 feet wide

2.        multi-projector tiling

3.        1600X1200 resolution per channel digital active stereo

4.        up to 12000 lumens digital projection

      We are asking for some clarification of the above referenced specification.  The specifications that you have identified do not exist in one Fakespace product.  Rather, multiple Fakespace products would be needed to achieve all that you are requesting.

     We respectfully request that the above specifications be reviewed with the manufacturer’s product specifications and either you alter your specifications to accommodate what is available or that you indicate that multiple products submitted for 9.5.b will be acceptable.
Answer: If multiple products are required to meet a specification, then they should be provided as the product solution for that requirement.

18.  Question:  Referencing Attachment B, Mandatory Deliverables:  We have just noticed a critical typographical error in RFP Attachment B regarding Class 1 Mass Storage Systems Deliverable Items. We are, therefore, asking a question because we believe that this error could confuse the capabilities of Class A with Class B, thus creating a basic flaw in not only the technical configurations but also in the pricing of each offeror’s proposal. Listed below please find the question that we have regarding the above-captioned RFP.   

Base System 

Class b Computer System 
64 bit CPU; 4 CPUs; 8 GB memory; 8 bus expansion slots; 128 GB user hard disk space; 1 TB RAID disk space; SCSI III/Fibre port; SDLT 600 tape drive; 1 serial interface; Keyboard and mouse, UNIX/LINUX OS; 8X DVD-ROM drive; 100Baset-T Ethernet Interface

Class a Computer System 
64 bit CPU; 8 CPUs; 16 GB memory; 16 bus expansion slots; 128 GB user hard disk space; 300 GB RAID disk space; SCSI III/Fibre port; SDLT 600 tape drive; 1 serial interface; Keyboard and mouse, UNIX/LINUX OS; 8X DVD-ROM drive; 100Baset-T Ethernet Interface

Throughout the RFP, Class A has been designated to be the larger system, with 1 TB RAID disk space. In the Attachment B description for both classes (a & b) of systems, the RAID disk spaces are reversed. The Class b system is shown to require 1 TB and the Class a system is listed as needing to be configured with 300 GB RAID disk space (instead of 1 TB). Please correct this error so that the correct and appropriate disk spaces are included in Attachment B.

Answer:  This was a typographical error in the Attachment B description. The specifications in Attachment A and the associated exhibits are correct.
19. Question:  Although Amendment 4 was just released, the solicitation face page did not contain the time on July 28, 2006 for when all proposals are due to NASA. Please provide the submission deadline to vendors as soon as possible.
Answer:  The date proposals are due was modified, but the time remains the same.  As a result of Amendment 5, proposals are due by 2:00pm on August 7, 2006.
20.  Question:  Should the alternate (second) solution offered under Class 5(b) include only pricing information, or should we also provide information in the Volume II, Mission Suitability Tabs?  
Answer:   Class 5(b) is not an alternate solution; it is one of the mandatory base systems.  Information provided in the Mission Suitability Tabs should be based on the instructions given in Section III.

21.  Question:  Does the government desire that contractors provide their entire list of products as “available components”, or should available components only include those products directly related to the Class solution? 
Answer: Instructions on providing Available Components are given in  Section A.3.13.1 Excellence of Proposed Systems (Subfactor A) under “Available Components / Instructions” and how the Government will evaluate the offering is described in Section A.4.6.1. Excellence of Proposed Systems (Subfactor A) under “Available Components”
22. Question:  Referencing Amendment 4, Attachment A, Technical Specifications, Section 6.6 Network Router
6.6.3.e - Large Network Routers - Based on Federal Market surveys, very few federal agencies are implementing OC-192 circuits. This requirement has mostly been replaced with 10GB circuits. Our experience shows that more agencies are implementing 10GB circuits which are listed as desirable in the RFP.  As a result, we would like to request that the mandatory requirement for SONET interfaces be reduced to OC-12 and that
SONET interfaces up to OC-192 be made a Desirable feature. This will also open up the list of manufacturers that can provide large routers thus giving the government a greater choice in options.

Answer:  The specifications will be updated to be OC-48.

23.  Question:  Referencing Amendment 4, Attachment A, Technical Specifications, Section 6.6 Network Router
6.6.3.c - Large Network Routers - Based on Federal Market surveys, most federal agencies that implement large routers utilize channelized DS3 modules instead of individual serial interfaces because of density concerns and cable management issues.  As a result, we would like to request that the channelized DS3 modules be permitted as an option for this section.  If acceptable, this will also require modification to Section 6.6.4.1 because a channelized DS3 does not utilize any of the stated interfaces.    This will also open up the list of manufacturers that can provide large routers thus giving the Government a greater choice in options.

Answer:  The specifications will be updated to allow for either channelized DS3 or individual serial interfaces. 
24.  Question:  We need clarification regarding Class 6 of the SEWP IV RFP. In sections 5.7.1 and 5.7.2 the RFP calls for varying UPS voltage requirements. Are we to interpret this as 5.7.1 calling for two separate units (both a 120V UPS unit and a 220/230V UPS unit) and likewise for 5.7.2? Or are we to interpret it as NASA expecting a single unit that is capable of supporting this exceptionally broad range of voltage?

Answer:  As stated in the specifications for the 5.7.1 Small Office Environment UPS, the choice between 120 and 220 is user selectable; i.e. an option at time of purchase.  The Small Server Room Environment UPS must be capable of both 120 and 208V output.
25.  Question:  In Amendment 2, exhibit changes: You referenced  3.3.2.3.a.3 as C++ 
debugger display of original source code variable names and replaced by 3.3.2.3.a.3.a C++ Site license. The C++ debugger display of original source code was actually 3.3.2.3.3a.2.  In 4.4.2.1.i, you replace 3.3.2.3.a.3 by 1 a C++ compiler unlimited system license.  What is that you really want for the C++ compiler license, a site does not make much sense if there multiple vendor computers on site.

Is 3.3.2.3.a.3.1 is a mandatory or a desirable feature? Shouldn't this still be as defined by 4.4.2.1.i?

Answer: The exhibits were corrected in Amendment 2 to match the RFP specifications.   As stated in the RFP and now correctly referenced in the exhibits for class 4, Section 3.3.2.3.2. requires a C++ debugger and the core requirement in 3.3.2.3.1.3. for a one use license is replaced by a system (not site) license. A site license remains a desirable feature.
26.  Question:  Providing the family class in comparison for Classes 1 and 5, we found that the Pricing Exhibit pre-populates the family class comparison with the same discount as the base system.

What if the family class comparison is offered under a significantly different discount?  As they stand, the pricing exhibits do not allow you to offer different discounts.
Answer: As stated in Section A.3.16.4.1.: “The Contractor's established Base A and Base B Family Discounts will be applied against the Contractor-provided list prices for the two base systems to establish the proposed SEWP price”. In other words, the discounts for the a and b systems establish the family discounts.
27.  Question:  Please clarify the requirement  on 5.7.1.b  Small Office UPS.  Do you
mean 110 AND 220 VAC? or Do you mean 110 OR 220 VAC?
Answer: As stated in the specifications for the 5.7.1 Small Office Environment UPS, the choice between 120 and 220 is user selectable; i.e. an option at time of purchase.
28.  Question:  On page 162 of the solicitation, is A.3.13.2, Offeror’s Support and Commitment (Subfactor B) intended to be included under our Tab 8 or our Tab 9 response? 

Answer: There are 2 Tabs associated with A.3.13.2: Tab 9 should contain the Commitment to Open Systems discussion and Tab 10 should contain the Post Award Support and Service discussion.  Tab 8 is for the Other Features discussion
.
29.  Question:  Does the response to A.3.13.2, Offeror’s Support and Commitment (Subfactor B) include addressing the entire Attachment C, Statement of Work, or only those sections that apply to our Support and Commitment after award? 
Answer: The sections to be responded to are specifically stated in each sub-heading of the instructions.
30.  Question:   Referencing Attachment A, Section 5.6.3.: Specifications for an ergonomic keyboard:
Clarification to the specifications for an ergonomic keyboard in Attachment A, Section 5.6.3.: alternate pointing devices such as a touchpad or joystick are an acceptable response to the integrated trackball and mouse requirement. 

Does your clarification mean integrated joystick/touchpad/trackball on a split design keyboard or can we pair a split ergo keyboard with an independent joystick/touchpad/trackball? Please clarify.

Answer: The device must be integrated.

31. Question:  Referencing OFFEROR REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS -- COMMERCIAL ITEMS (52.212-3)
(MAR 2005) -- ALTERNATE I (APR 2002) AND ALTERNATE II (OCT 2000)
52.212-3 is referenced and applies to the SEWPIV RFP.     

Does the exemption as denoted below under FAR 25.401 (a)(1) apply to the
Trade Agreements Act and are products submitted and offered under Category
B, Classes 6 and 9 exempt from TAA requirements?

Answer: Actual decisions as to purchase of TAA or non-TAA compliant products will be made at the delivery order level per the appropriate FAR regulations.  

32. Question: Is the Country of Origin (for the reference of a TAA Compliant or Non-TAA Compliant product) required within the Technical Response of the RFP
submission?

Answer: Offerors must provide information on non-TAA compliant products as part of their OFFEROR REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS not as part of the technical response.
33.  Question:  Referencing RFP (A4) Section 8.2.i, hard disk drive (pages 104-105) 

1. with formatted 512 Kbytes/Sector disk space of 250 GB 

Hard drives meeting/ exceeding requirements 8.2.i.2 through 8.2.i.7 are available and are currently in production from one manufacturer, but not yet in a capacity that meets/ exceeds the 8.2.i.1 requirement.  

The manufacturer advises that production dates and pricing information for the higher capacity drives will not be available until Q4 2006 at the earliest.

We ask that the government change 8.2.i.1 to specify disk space of 146 GB so that a commercially available drive, meeting/ exceeding all of the desired specifications, can be supplied.
Answer: The specifications will be updated to read a minimum of 146 GB.
34.  Question:   Under the High End Router – OC192 is only available on High end optical routers. OC192 is not supported on the example router (Juniper M20) posed in the RFP. We would like to request the following change on MM7. OC192 should become a desirable feature.

 Change request:

 6.6.3.e. Lge Router OEM1: 4 Packet over SONET interfaces up to OC192

 6.6.3.e. Lge Router OEM2: 4 Packet over SONET interfaces up to OC192

  Be changed to:
  6.6.3.e. Lge Router OEM1: 4 Packet over SONET interfaces up to OC48

 6.6.3.e. Lge Router OEM2: 4 Packet over SONET interfaces up to OC48

In all of our research almost no manufactures support OC192 in their standard router product lines if at all.  
Answer: The specifications will be updated to be OC-48.
35.  Question:  One of our OEM Partners has informed us that there Hardware Platform is LSB Certified. However, they do not provide a Physical Certificate (Piece of Paper) to customers from LSB.

 

It was not clear if the Minimum Mandatory requirement was for the proposed systems to be LSB Certified, and that a statement from the OEM to that affect was sufficient or that the Offeror was expected to produce some form of documentation of Certification on LSB letterhead or equivalent.

 

Could you include this as part of the Mod 5 Clarifications?

Answer: The LSB conformance statement is required.  LSB Conformance statements are available through The Open Group (https://www.opengroup.org/lsb/cert/cert_prodlist2.tpl)
36.  Question:  On the MM6 sheet, the font requirements are listed in the following way: 

 5.2.1.1.e. Mono printer: 136 postscipt / 45 PCL fonts

5.2.1.2.e. Hi-speed printer: 136 postscipt / 45 PCL fonts

5.2.1.3.e. Color printer: 158 postscipt / 84 PCL fonts

 Postscript and PCL are alternate technologies. Can a recommended item meet one or the other to be considered acceptable?  
Answer: Both postscript and PCL fonts must be available on the base printers.
37.  Question:  Reviewing Amendment 4 and the RFP Comments Review 5, there is an apparent issue with the Unix Certification Requirement under Section 3.3.2.a. The stated minimum mandatory requirement has been changed to Unix 95. We believe this is an administrative error inadvertently restricting competition and we request a clarification/change to the language to correct this oversight.

Unix 95 is an approximately 12 year old standard , which limits the breadth and scope of potential Unix vendors for the SEWP IV purchasing community, as well as limits the technical viability of products adhering to this standard.

Unix 95 certification does imply Unix 98 or Unix 03 certifications, as each later standard includes the requirements that made up the previous standard.  Consequently, by reverting to Unix 95 Certification and compliance, NASA is inadvertently limiting choices and penalizing offerors who are staying current with the latest Unix Branding Certification requirements.  

Our primary interest in bringing this issue to your attention is to ensure that SEWP IV users' financial, technological, and infrastructure requirements are met, now and in the future in the resulting SEWP IV contracts.  

The original clarification requested the following language to amend this Section:

"either UNIX 95 or UNIX 98 branded with delivery of a copy of the Open Group branding certificate provided with the proposal, or Linux Certified including the Linux Standard Base (LSB) Runtime Environment Version 1.3 certified with a copy of the LSB Conformance Statement provided with the proposal.”

We recommend that this language be amended even further to state:

"Unix 95, Unix 98 or Unix 03 branded with delivery of a copy of the Open Group branding certificate provided with the proposal, or Linux Certified including the Linux Standard Base (LSB) Runtime Environment Version 1.3 certified with a copy of the LSB Conformance Statement provided with the proposal.”

Answer:  UNIX 95 is a minimum mandatory.  As stated in the RFP, more recent versions are desirable and therefore either UNIX 95 or a more recent version is acceptable.  No change is required in the RFP.  If a newer version is provided than the minimum, indicate the Minimum was met in the Minimum Mandatory (MM) exhibit and that the desirable was met in the Desirable Feature (DF) exhibit.
